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CWA section 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C.
1321(b)(6), has assessed a civil penalty
for these violations. The Administrator,
as required by CWA section
311(b)(6)(C), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(C), is
hereby providing public notice of, and
an opportunity for interested persons to
comment on, this consent agreement
and proposed final order.

DATES: Comments are due on or before
May 7, 2001.

ADDRESSES: Mail written comments to
the Enforcement & Compliance Docket
and Information Center (2201A), Docket
Number EC-2001-004, Office of
Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance, U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW., Mail Code 2201A,
Washington, DC 20460. (Comments may
be submitted on disk in WordPerfect 8.0
or earlier versions.) Written comments
may be delivered in person to:
Enforcement and Compliance Docket
Information Center, U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios
Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW.,
Washington, DC. Submit comments
electronically to docket.oeca@epa.gov.
Electronic comments may be filed
online at many Federal Depository
Libraries.

The consent agreement, the proposed
final order, and public comments, if
any, may be reviewed at the
Enforcement and Compliance Docket
Information Center, U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios
Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW.,
Washington, DC. Persons interested in
reviewing these materials must make
arrangements in advance by calling the
docket clerk at 202-564—-2614. A
reasonable fee may be charged by EPA
for copying docket materials.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Beth
Cavalier, Multimedia Enforcement
Division (2248-A), U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20460;
telephone (202) 564-3271; fax: (202)
564—9001; e-mail:
cavalier.beth@epa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Electronic
Copies: Electronic copies of this
document are available from the EPA
Home Page under the link “Laws and
Regulations” at the Federal Register—
Environmental Documents entry (http:/
/www.epa.gov/fedrgstr).

I. Background

XO Communications, Inc., a
telecommunications company
incorporated in the State of Delaware
and located at 11111 Sunset Hills Road,
Reston, Virginia 20190, failed to prepare
SPCC plans for three facilities. XO

Communications, Inc. disclosed,
pursuant to the EPA “Incentives for
Self-Policing: Discovery, Disclosures,
Correction and Prevention of
Violations” (“Audit Policy”), 60 FR
66706 (December 22, 1995), that they
failed to prepare SPCC plans for three
facilities where they stored diesel oil in
above ground storage tanks, in violation
of the CWA section 311(b)(3) and 40
CFR part 112. EPA determined that XO
met the criteria set out in the Audit
Policy for a 100% waiver of the gravity
component of the penalty. As a result,
EPA waived the gravity based penalty
($12,000) and proposed a settlement
penalty amount of two hundred and
twenty-two ($222). This is the amount
of the economic benefit gained by XO,
attributable to their delayed compliance
with the SPCC regulations. XO
Communications, Inc. has agreed to pay
this amount in civil penalties. EPA and
XO negotiated and signed an
administrative consent agreement,
following the Consolidated Rules of
Procedure, 40 CFR 22.13, on March 19,
2001 (In Re: XO Communications, Inc.,
Docket No. MM-HQ-2001-0017). This
consent agreement is subject to public
notice and comment under CWA section
311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6).

Under CWA section 311(b)(6)(A), 33
U.S.C. 1321 (b)(6)(A), any owner,
operator, or person in charge of a vessel,
onshore facility, or offshore facility from
which oil is discharged in violation of
the CWA section 311(b)(3), 33 U.S.C.
1321 (b)(3), or who fails or refuses to
comply with any regulations that have
been issued under CWA section 311(j),
33 U.S.C. 1321(j), may be assessed an
administrative civil penalty of up to
$137,500 by EPA. Class II proceedings
under CWA section 311(b)(6) are
conducted in accordance with 40 CFR
part 22.

The procedures by which the public
may comment on a proposed Class II
penalty order, or participate in a Clean
Water Act Class II penalty proceeding,
are set forth in 40 CFR 22.45. The
deadline for submitting public comment
on this proposed final order is May 7,
2001. All comments will be transferred
to the Environmental Appeals Board
(“EAB”’) of EPA for consideration. The
powers and duties of the EAB are
outlined in 40 CFR 22.04(a).

Pursuant to CWA section 311(b)(6)(C),
EPA will not issue an order in this
proceeding prior to the close of the
public comment period.

Dated: March 26, 2001.
David A. Nielsen,

Director, Multimedia Enforcement Division,
Office of Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance.

[FR Doc. 01-8495 Filed 4-5—-01; 8:45 am]
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AGENCY

[FRL-6962-8]

Final Modification of the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) General Permit for
the Eastern Portion of the Outer
Continental Shelf (OCS) of the Gulf of
Mexico (GMG280000); Corrections

AGENCY: Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).
ACTION: Notice; corrections.

SUMMARY: EPA published a notice in the
Federal Register of March 14, 2001 (66
FR 14988), for the Final Modification of
the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) General
Permit for the Eastern Portion of the
Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) of the
Gulf of Mexico (GMG280000). The
document contained typographical
errors and omissions.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
William Truman, (404) 562—9457.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Corrections

In the Federal Register of Wednesday,
March 14, 2001, in FR Doc. 01-6175,
make the following corrections:

1. On page 14994, the second column,
under the heading “3. Produced Water”,
the following is inserted as the third
paragraph:

“Facilities that pass six consecutive
produced water toxicity tests will be
allowed to change to a frequency of
once/every six months; otherwise
bimonthly testing shall continue”

2. On page 14996, the third column,
the first table, correct the title to read:
“4—PRODUCED WATER CRITICAL

DILUTIONS (PERCENT EFFLUENT)

FOR WATER DEPTHS OF LESS

THAN 200 METERS”.

3. On page 14998, Table 2, under the
heading “Measurement frequency” for
“Miscellaneous discharges of seawater
and freshwater to which treatment
chemicals have been added.”, correct
“1/week” to read “Once/day when
discharging”.

4. On page 14999, Table 3, under the
heading “Measurement frequency” for
“Miscellaneous discharges of seawater
and freshwater to which treatment
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chemicals have been added.”, correct
“1/week” to read “Once/day when
discharging”.

Dated: March 14, 2001.
A. Stanley Meiburg,
Acting Regional Administrator, Region 4.
[FR Doc. 01-8483 Filed 4-5-01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6560-50—P

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION

Notice of Agency Meeting

Pursuant to the provisions of the
“Government in the Sunshine Act” (5
U.S.C. 552b), notice is hereby given that
the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s Board of Directors will
meet in open session at 10 a.m. on
Tuesday, April 10, 2001, to consider the
following matters:

Summary Agenda: No substantive
discussion of the following items is
anticipated. These matters will be
resolved with a single vote unless a
member of the Board of Directors
requests that an item be moved to the
discussion agenda.

Disposition of minutes of previous
Board of Directors’ meetings.

Summary reports, status reports, and
reports of actions taken pursuant to
authority delegated by the Board of
Directors.

Discussion Agenda

Memorandum re: Petition to Convert
General Counsel Opinion No. 12—
Engaged in the Business of Receiving
Deposits Other Than Trust Funds—to a
Regulation.

The meeting will be held in the Board
Room on the sixth floor of the FDIC
Building located at 550—17th Street,
NW., Washington, DC.

The FDIC will provide attendees with
auxiliary aids (e.g., sign language
interpretation) required for this meeting.
Those attendees needing such assistance
should call (202) 416-2089 (Voice);
(202) 416-2007 (TTY), to make
necessary arrangements.

Requests for further information
concerning the meeting may be directed
to Mr. Robert E. Feldman, Executive
Secretary of the Corporation, at (202)
898-6757.

Dated: April 3, 2001.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Robert E. Feldman,

Executive Secretary.
[FR Doc. 01-8632 Filed 4-4—01; 1:14 pm]
BILLING CODE 6714-01-M

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and
Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice
have applied to the Board for approval,
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 et seq.)
(BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR Part
225), and all other applicable statutes
and regulations to become a bank
holding company and/or to acquire the
assets or the ownership of, control of, or
the power to vote shares of a bank or
bank holding company and all of the
banks and nonbanking companies
owned by the bank holding company,
including the companies listed below.

The applications listed below, as well
as other related filings required by the
Board, are available for immediate
inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank
indicated. The application also will be
available for inspection at the offices of
the Board of Governors. Interested
persons may express their views in
writing on the standards enumerated in
the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). If the
proposal also involves the acquisition of
a nonbanking company, the review also
includes whether the acquisition of the
nonbanking company complies with the
standards in section 4 of the BHC Act
(12 U.S.C. 1843). Unless otherwise
noted, nonbanking activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.
Additional information on all bank
holding companies may be obtained
from the National Information Center
website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding each of these applications
must be received at the Reserve Bank
indicated or the offices of the Board of
Governors not later than April 30, 2001.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis
(Randall C. Sumner, Vice President) 411
Locust Street, St. Louis, Missouri
63166—2034:

1. Rockhold Bancorp, Kirksville,
Missouri; to acquire 25 percent of the
voting shares of Rockhold Bancorp,
Kirksville, Missouri, and thereby
indirectly acquire voting shares of La
Plata Bancshares, Inc., La Plata,
Missouri, and La Plata State Bank, La
Plata, Missouri.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, April 2, 2001.
Robert deV. Frierson
Associate Secretary of the Board.
[FR Doc. 01-8450 Filed 4-5—-01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-S

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Notice of Proposals to Engage in
Permissible Nonbanking Activities or
to Acquire Companies that are
Engaged in Permissible Nonbanking
Activities

The companies listed in this notice
have given notice under section 4 of the
Bank Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C.
1843) (BHC Act) and Regulation Y (12
CFR Part 225) to engage de novo, or to
acquire or control voting securities or
assets of a company, including the
companies listed below, that engages
either directly or through a subsidiary or
other company, in a nonbanking activity
that is listed in § 225.28 of Regulation Y
(12 CFR 225.28) or that the Board has
determined by Order to be closely
related to banking and permissible for
bank holding companies. Unless
otherwise noted, these activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.

Each notice is available for inspection
at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated.
The notice also will be available for
inspection at the offices of the Board of
Governors. Interested persons may
express their views in writing on the
question whether the proposal complies
with the standards of section 4 of the
BHC Act. Additional information on all
bank holding companies may be
obtained from the National Information
Center website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding the applications must be
received at the Reserve Bank indicated
or the offices of the Board of Governors
not later than April 20, 2001.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of San
Francisco (Maria Villanueva, Consumer
Regulation Group) 101 Market Street,
San Francisco, California 94105-1579:

1. Wells Fargo & Company, San
Francisco, California; to acquire ACO
Brokerage Holdings Corporation,
Chicago, Illinois, and its subsidiaries,
and thereby engage in providing
investment and financial advisory
services, pursuant to § 225.28(b)(6) of
Regulation Y; employee benefits
consulting services, pursuant to §
225.28(b)(9)(ii) of Regulation Y;
insurance agency activities, pursuant to
§ 225.28(b)(11)(vii) of Regulation Y; and
data processing, pursuant to §
225.28(b)(14) of Regulation Y.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, April 2, 2001.
Robert deV. Frierson
Associate Secretary of the Board.
[FR Doc. 01-8451 Filed 4-5-01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-S
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